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EVALUATOR DEPARTMENT:  Environmental Protection 
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************************************************************************************************************************ 
Instructions: The purpose of this form is to record proposal review notes written by individual evaluators 
for this Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  It is required that each individual evaluator make notes for 
each proposal that he or she reviews.  No numerical scoring should take place on these notes, as that is 
performed only during team consensus evaluation meetings.  A separate form is available for team 
consensus evaluation notes and scoring. Once complete, please submit a copy of this document to your 
Department’s RFP Coordinator or Lead Evaluator for this RFP. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Individual Evaluator Comments: 
 

Applicant Qualifications (10) 

+ lots of experience with 319 & 604b projects (recent iffy performance?) 

- don’t see any ag experience 36% is ag and there is an ag survey; task 3e is all ag 

Relative Value of Waterbody (10) 

- not public drinking water, no specific public use of water body 

+ important habitat 

- no sport fishery although it has 3 species of fish (IFW survey) 

 

 

 

NPS Pollution Problem/Need (15) 

+ bacteria 
- don’t know how many sample or for how many years … how old is data? 
+/- was in draft NPS TMDL but removed from final because municipality argued against its inclusion – need to 
find out why? 
- no bug data 

+ low DO but watershed sounds wetlandy and maybe low DO is natural? 
- states ‘historic data indicates low DO’ – so nothing recent? 
- unknown type of ag (is the 37% row crop or livestock a combination?) 

+ stream habitat walk  

- Nothing about public sewer – is this area sewered?  Talks about cross connections and also septics – I am 
confused. 
+ Limited green space in Southern Maine 
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Feasibility of Success (25) 

- no smoking gun – (e.g. large livestock operation) feels like a shotgun – lets survey everything … 

+ believe District can complete plan as proposed but 
- unsure if there is a problem and if it will be able to address it 
- not clear if this is 5 or 10-year plan, what are we buying 

- general feel of uncertainty  

- 2yr – thought this was supposed to be 1 year? 

- states high growth but no mention of ordinance or zoning review to address new development and potential 
new problems 
- proposal speaks of contiguous important habitat but nothing is mentioned about exploring how to keep the 
habitat that is being used to justify the need – (e.g. if this contiguous habitat is gone is it still worth fixing the 
other issues?) 
- no constituency  clambering to improve, driven by listing but I question listing 

- all retrofit no prevention yet in high growth area .. what is to say all this work is done that it isn’t undone by 
new development? 
 

 

 

Cost Effectiveness (25) 

- number of meetings for small watershed seems excessive  

? septic & sewer survey – not sure what product there will be, plus how much of watershed is sewered and how 
much on septic?  Cost is low if sanitary survey 
- might qualify for indirect costs but they are excessive compared to money for rest of federal money.  Only 
need $8,400 of grant money that is not indirect, to complete project.  65% of federal money is indirect 
+ 43% grant v 57% match 
With so much grant going for indirect, why not just do the project without any grant funding? 
- 7 staff for small watershed 

Maine Business & Economic Impact (10) 

 

Comprehensive Plan (5) 
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************************************************************************************************************************ 
Instructions: The purpose of this form is to record proposal review notes written by individual evaluators 
for this Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  It is required that each individual evaluator make notes for 
each proposal that he or she reviews.  No numerical scoring should take place on these notes, as that is 
performed only during team consensus evaluation meetings.  A separate form is available for team 
consensus evaluation notes and scoring. Once complete, please submit a copy of this document to your 
Department’s RFP Coordinator or Lead Evaluator for this RFP. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Individual Evaluator Comments: 
 

Applicant Qualifications (10) 

+ lots of experience with 319 & 604b projects (recent iffy performance?) 

+/- no sub-grantees or contractors so no wondering who will do the work and if they have the skills 
Strong TAC – likely to depend on them. 
+ lots of past lake protection work including on this lake 

+/- Heather strong partner, gets reports in on time, Adam has wwtp engineering experience not sure about 
conservation BMPs/stormwater/NPS 
 

Relative Value of Waterbody (10) 

- limited public access (modest hand carry 

+ important wildlife habitat 

+ locally important resource/lake (outside Maine’s largest city and has 1000+ year round residence) 

+/- Basically a Maine lake 

- Not a destination lake due to limited public access 

+ alewife run 

NPS Pollution Problem/Need (15) 

- not listed as impaired (was on list but came off) statement that it may go back on but I don’t know if that is 
accurate? 
+ increasing levels of phosphorus since delisting (VLMP data shows this to be true)  
- Wish report had had data in it 
+/- sechi disc data shows mostly stable and all readings below 2m thus does not yet meet impairment status 

+ P data and changes in algae community shows something is changing or changed. 

+ we know generally where P comes from, doing watershed survey on their own 2018 

- for one of the most studied lakes in the state, there isn’t much info in proposal. 
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+ amount of new development (lots of development pressure) is what sets this lake apart from other Maine 
lakes. 
Feasibility of Success (25) 

+ loads of interest and past work 
+ municipalities very involved 
+ have successfully done work that resulted in water body being moved off impaired list 

+ believe District can complete project as outlined 

- don’t understand why 5 or 10 year plan, shouldn’t they know what they want for a plan?  Shouldn’t they 
understand it takes years of work – 5 not enough and they can always modify and update if a 10 year plan ? 
- unsure what kind of septic system survey will be done.  No reference to any guide or what data will be 
collected. 
+ municipalities already reviewing ordnances – hopefully will address future threats  

+ Good to check installed BMPs for O & M 
+ does note use of NPS Site Tracker 
- no mention of how BMPs will be evaluated – consider Marianne Huberts past BMP inspection work 
- Need QAPP for task 3c ? or are they just doing P?  
+ do say SAP 
- with 1000 residences and many year-round seems like a good place for LakeSmart 

- Windham hasn’t been very proactive about controlling development in the watershed.  No checks on it so 
letting good work of the past be undone, what is to prevent this from continuing in the future? 
Cost Effectiveness (25) 

- TAC seems pricey for 6 meetings 

? can 604b purchase water quality monitoring equipment?  

- Task 6 – cost seem high for the types of activities proposed.  Missing numbers – (e.g. number or newspaper 
articles, # of meetings).   
+ Outreach is needed. 
- 50% of grant to indirect costs.  Biggest ticket item 

+ 53% federal v 47% match 

- pricey for lake WBP 

Maine Business & Economic Impact (10) 

 

Comprehensive Plan (5) 
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************************************************************************************************************************ 
Instructions: The purpose of this form is to record proposal review notes written by individual evaluators 
for this Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  It is required that each individual evaluator make notes for 
each proposal that he or she reviews.  No numerical scoring should take place on these notes, as that is 
performed only during team consensus evaluation meetings.  A separate form is available for team 
consensus evaluation notes and scoring. Once complete, please submit a copy of this document to your 
Department’s RFP Coordinator or Lead Evaluator for this RFP. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Individual Evaluator Comments: 
 

Applicant Qualifications (10) 

+ lots of planning and project management experience 

- no 319 or 604b experience 

- under General Project Plan is says “Frenchman Bay Partners 610” will help manage the project but they aren’t 
described in Quals and I don’t know who they are.  They are also responsible for huge match 
- ‘Project staff’ will develop WBP – lack experience working on water quality planning documents and projects. 

- RPC is in flux, new staff and retiring staff 

-/+ HCSWCD new staff, a bit shaky but they don’t have a big role in project – yet someone needs to look at 
landuse and potential sources. 
Relative Value of Waterbody (10) 

+ important shell fishery – main value 

+ important tourist area (drains to waterway adjacent to MDI) 

- no mention of public access to the river itself, no public drinking water 

+/- not a big recreational draw with MDI so close at the same time might need protection from so much local 
activity that may spill over 
NPS Pollution Problem/Need (15) 

+ bacteria impairment - DMR 

+ some exploratory sampling of bacteria and septic system survey work – no smoking guns yet 

- lack of clarity of possible sources (e.g. no mention of public sewer system and possible leaking pipes, no 
mention of livestock, possible number of septic systems in watershed) 
+ near upper limit of bacteria to allow shell fishing.  Not listed as impaired but is on threatened list. 

- With lack of info/discussion on possible sources (landused landuse activities) doesn’t appear they have a clear 
understanding of watershed. 
Feasibility of Success (25) 

- Uncertain if there is an understanding of what the potential sources are and how they will be explored.  
Appears focused on sampling which is good if it is combined with looking at landuses, sewer connects etc. 
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- Lack of experience in NPS projects and WBP writing.  Consultant will have skills but they are not responsible 
for Task 7.  Since task budget tables weren’t completed correctly it is hazy as to what consultant is responsible 
for. 
- Task 3 – not sure how many times TAC will meet. 

- Unclear who 610 Committee is, again not part of Quls and at times might be referred to as “Frenchman Bay 
Partners”   No letter of support for them – they are an unknown 
- Doesn’t appear much town involvement (need to do more than advisory committee if they are to help 
implement plan) 
- no experience with WBP and not partnering (subgrant or contract) with entity that does. 

- lacks wholistic look at watershed issues 

Cost Effectiveness (25) 

- Hard to say, but don’t think there will be an approvable WBP as a result, nor a through enough plan on how to 
identify the sources. 
+ Costs are not out of line 

- big match from unknown (Frenchman Bay Regional Shellfish Committee and Community Lab) 

- costs don’t seem well thought out or show lack of experience in true cost (e.g. outreach) 

+ met match 

Maine Business & Economic Impact (10) 

 

Comprehensive Plan (5) 
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************************************************************************************************************************ 
Instructions: The purpose of this form is to record proposal review notes written by individual evaluators 
for this Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  It is required that each individual evaluator make notes for 
each proposal that he or she reviews.  No numerical scoring should take place on these notes, as that is 
performed only during team consensus evaluation meetings.  A separate form is available for team 
consensus evaluation notes and scoring. Once complete, please submit a copy of this document to your 
Department’s RFP Coordinator or Lead Evaluator for this RFP. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Individual Evaluator Comments: 
 

Applicant Qualifications (10) 

+ applicant has long history of 319 and 604b projects 

+ subgrantee also has long history of NPS projects 

+/- description of consultant fairly complete but if internal recycling is so important not sure why that hasn’t 
been highlighted as a needed qualification …  
+ strong team KCSWCD & BRCA (7Laks)  

Relative Value of Waterbody (10) 

+/- typical Maine lake; swimming, public boat launch; summer camps. 

- no mention of public beach 

+ Regionally important 

+ center piece of town (built on edge of) 

NPS Pollution Problem/Need (15) 

? states 34% of P load is internal (planning Al treatment?) 

? not on impaired list yet; P values (5-11 X=8.8)and sechi disc (4.2-9.1 X-6.3) don’t look bad.  Concern is low DO. 
P7 
+ Have active lake association with Youth Conservation Corps, had multiple implementation projects, 
LakeSmart, plan another watershed survey ….so they should know … 
- Watershed survey should find ‘new’ problems since last, need to ask why new problems and look to prevent 
new problems – don’t see where plan intends to prevent problems 
- What about roads?  Not much said … so many years of experience and work – Private roads?  Associations? 
 
- no mention of other watershed activities (commercial & ag?)  

Feasibility of Success (25) 

- Past work points to active association, LakeSmart points to shorefront property work – all point to addressing 
existing NPS sources no mention of preventing new sources.  (Ordinances, enforcement, road associations) 
- Towns have no investment in effort ($) and I they are moving toward in-lake treatment towns will need to be 
on board. 
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+ have a nice group of experienced organizations and staff involved 

+ believe the project will be completed but 
- not sure the document will provide the road map forward 
- large watershed with many potential sources – unsure if Al treatment will solve problem or that it is impaired 
‘enough’  
+ fairly decent water quality (aka not severely impaired) hence likely ‘restorable’  

Cost Effectiveness (25) 

+ Costs seem reasonable for work to be done 

- No real match from municipalities. 

+ 49% fed v 51% match 

+ low administration costs  

- light on internal load specialist – hope 11.5 hours is enough. 

Maine Business & Economic Impact (10) 

 

Comprehensive Plan (5) 

 

 

 



STATE OF MAINE - INDIVIDUAL EVALUTION NOTES 
 
RFP #:  201802019 
RFP TITLE:  GRANTS FOR NONPOINT SOURCE PROJECTS WATERSHED-BASED PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
BIDDER NAME: Kennebec CSWCD Webber & 3 Mile 
DATE:  May 17. 2018  
EVALUATOR NAME:  Kathy Hoppe   
EVALUATOR DEPARTMENT:  Environmental Protection 

1 
 

************************************************************************************************************************ 
Instructions: The purpose of this form is to record proposal review notes written by individual evaluators 
for this Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  It is required that each individual evaluator make notes for 
each proposal that he or she reviews.  No numerical scoring should take place on these notes, as that is 
performed only during team consensus evaluation meetings.  A separate form is available for team 
consensus evaluation notes and scoring. Once complete, please submit a copy of this document to your 
Department’s RFP Coordinator or Lead Evaluator for this RFP. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Individual Evaluator Comments: 
 

Applicant Qualifications (10) 

+ applicant has long history of 319 and 604b projects 

- Confused regarding consultant – on one level says they will go through hiring process on another level under 
Quals they list a specific person and under match there is a consulting firm 
+ Lake association has long history of NPS work and successfully completing projects 

- should have a limnologist to look more wholistic – lots of blooms 

- team could/should have more depth 

Relative Value of Waterbody (10) 

+ Public boat launch, swimming, fishing; aka typical Maine Lake 

+ alewife reintroduction 

+ blooms severely  

NPS Pollution Problem/Need (15) 

+ impaired water bodies, TMDL, P problem 

+ past surveys point to road issues 
+ recent road survey  
- no info or findings/summary 
- left unsaid is why Mud is not included 

+ water quality is improving, wish to continue that work 

- no mention of camp/residence issues, new development or camp conversions ? 

+ recognized ag in watershed and said not an issue now 

- Disconnect between past survey lack of details 

Feasibility of Success (25) 

+ I believe KCSWCD can complete the proposed project 
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- I am not convinced the WBP will be a complete WBP looking at all possible NPS sources.  Seems very road 
centric which may indeed be where the serious problems exist but workplan seems to miss that the WBP is for 
all NPS issues (aka the WBP may conclude that only the roads need to be addressed that they are the causal 
agent but it doesn’t appear that the process laid out will explore or review the other potential sources) 
+ appreciate the candor that an in-lake treatment is not the goal 

+ lots of past implementation and on-going work (YCC too) 

- General Project Plan doesn’t really describe clearly what will happen other than contracting 

- missing active engagement 

- missing 2nd data review/not wholistic look at watershed 

Cost Effectiveness (25) 

+ costs seem reasonable however .. 
- I have concerns that this will be a complete review of NPS sources and solutions and 
- appears to be more of a road NPS planning document 
- match just met (72 v 28%) (Match iffy with consultant who may not be hired) 

- not a great deal of local support behind this based on match 

+ low personnel costs. 

Maine Business & Economic Impact (10) 

 

Comprehensive Plan (5) 
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************************************************************************************************************************ 
Instructions: The purpose of this form is to record proposal review notes written by individual evaluators 
for this Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  It is required that each individual evaluator make notes for 
each proposal that he or she reviews.  No numerical scoring should take place on these notes, as that is 
performed only during team consensus evaluation meetings.  A separate form is available for team 
consensus evaluation notes and scoring. Once complete, please submit a copy of this document to your 
Department’s RFP Coordinator or Lead Evaluator for this RFP. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Individual Evaluator Comments: 
 

Applicant Qualifications (10) 

+ applicant has experience with NPS projects 

+ partner (WNERR) has monitoring experience and experience with volunteers & outreach 

+ applicant has experience with grants, reporting, finical management 

+ clearly describes consultant qualification needs 

- while York CSWCD lacks depth, WNERR likely to pick up and carry if needed. 

Relative Value of Waterbody (10) 

+ recreational waterbody discharging to public beach, drinking water source in headwaters 

+ swimming (contact recreation Gooch Beach)  

+ fishery (not unique to area but used) 

+ wildlife habitat for rare bird (important to tourist industry)  

+ marina use – economic importance  

NPS Pollution Problem/Need (15) 

+ clearly states bacteria; listed in bacteria TMDL 

- Muddled understanding of biomonitoring.  Mentions attainment and nonattainment but not the cause 
of possible cause nor does it appear there will be any pursuit of possible cause.  Thus not sure WBP 
will address source of bug impairment if listed in the future. 
+/- lots of past bacteria monitoring and studies (appears no follow through with septic investigations – 
no mention that Watershed Risk Analysis resulted in any systems being fixed) 
+ subwatershed monitoring – strong case for ‘we have been trying to figure out the source(s)’ 

+ beach closures 

Feasibility of Success (25) 

+ proposal is well explained and laid out; appears clear understanding of process 
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+/- are considering ordinance review; doesn’t mention for what?  New development?  Property 
transfer?  Goal of review since normally septic system is regulations are state subsurface …  
+ plan to talk to every town. 

- Lots of past monitoring and some planning but not much mention of fixing problems with identified 
(pump out barge mentioned but not if it is being used; Watershed Rick Analysis IDed 16 properties in 
2009 no mention of follow-up or action) Question – will they implement plan?  Proven they can collect 
data can they take next step. 
- 35% of watershed is in Lyman but no mention of them participating. 

- Unclear what engineer will be designing 

- unclear outfall mapping – will this only be Kennebunk and Kennebunkport or will it include Arundel 
and Lyman?  What protocol will they follow?  Will they simply get GIS coordinate or will they also 
inspect?  No mention as deliverable. 
- Unsure if cause of bug community will be identified and addressed in WBP. 

+ good coordination  

Cost Effectiveness (25) 

+ costs for all tasks seem reasonable 

+ match exceeds minimum (min 25%) – match is 41%. 

- unclear what engineer will be designing since bacteria issue 

 

Maine Business & Economic Impact (10) 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan (5) 
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